
           
The City of Muskogee encourages participation from all its citizens in public meetings. If participation is not possible due to a disability,
notify the City Clerk, in writing, at least forty-eight hours prior to the scheduled meeting and necessary accommodations will be made (ADA
28 CFR/36).

Council Rules of Decorum limit citizen comments on agenda items and public hearings to five (5) minutes and general comments for
non-agenda items to three (3) minutes.  Any person desiring to address the Council during such period is required to sign in with the City Clerk
prior to the Council meeting between 5:00 p.m. and 5:15 p.m. on the third floor of City Hall or anytime between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. in the
Office of the City Clerk. They shall provide their name, address and specify the agenda item they wish to address. Remarks shall be directed to
the matter being considered and the speaker is allowed to speak only one time. If written materials are to be submitted twelve (12) copies
should be made available, and may not be returned.

 

AGENDA
MUSKOGEE CITY COUNCIL

May 29, 2018
 
 

REGULAR SESSION - 5:30 P.M., 3RD FLOOR, COUNCIL CHAMBERS MUNICIPAL BUILDING,
229 W. OKMULGEE, MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA

INVOCATION - COUNCILMEMBER WAYNE JOHNSON

FLAG SALUTE - MAYOR BOB COBURN

ROLL CALL - MAYOR BOB COBURN

           
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION May 14, 2018.
 

CONSENT AGENDA
 

The following items are considered to be routine by the City Council and will not be read
aloud. The Consent Agenda will be enacted with one motion and should discussion be desired
on an item, that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda prior to action and
considered separately prior to the Regular Agenda.
 
 

1. Approval of claims for all City departments May 3, 2018 through May 15, 2018.
 

2. Approval of Resolution No. 2723 adopting and amending Appendix A of the City of
Muskogee Code pertaining to all fees, charges, and rates for the Muskogee Civic Center. 
(Councilor Wayne Johnson)

 

3. Approval of a Resolution No. 2725 declaring one (1) parcel of property, more particularly
described in the resolution, as surplus to the needs of the City and authorize the conveyance of
said property, or take other necessary action. (Tish Callahan)

 

4. Approval of a Preliminary and Final Plat of Wallingford Addition, consisting of two (2) lots



4. Approval of a Preliminary and Final Plat of Wallingford Addition, consisting of two (2) lots
on 2.28 acres, located at 11 Beckman Drive, or take other necessary action. (Tish Callahan)  

 

  A part of the NW1/4 of the NE1/4 of Section 19, T15N, R18E, Muskogee County,
Oklahoma, more particularly described as follows: Commencing at the NE corner of the
NW1/4 NE1/4 of Section 19, T15N, R18E, Muskogee County, Oklahoma; thence due South
along the East boundary of said NW1/4 NE1/4 a distance of 1321.75 feet to a point; thence
N89°48'00"W a distance of 300.94 feet to the Point of Beginning: thence N89°48'00"W a
distance of 362.84 feet to a point; thence due North a distance of 195.99 feet to a point;
thence N63°34'00"E a distance of 66.10 feet to a point of curvature; thence along a curve to
the Right having a radius of 219.47 feet a distance of 101.43 feet to a point of tangency;
thence S89°48'00"E a distance of 0.00; thence due South a distance of 40.0 feet to a point;
thence S89°48'00"E a distance of 195.74 feet to a point; thence S00°12'00"E a distance of
0.00 feet to a point of curvature; thence along a curve to the left having a radius of 50 feet a
distance of 32.35 feet to a point; thence S36°52'10"E a distance of 0.00 feet to the point of
tangency; thence due South a distance of 178.75 feet to the Point of Beginning.
AND
A part of the NW1/4 of the NE1/4 in Section 19, T15N, R18E of the I.B.&M., Muskogee
County, Oklahoma, more particularly described as follows, to wit: Commencing at the
Northeast corner of said NW1/4 NE1/4 of Section 19, thence N89°48'W a distance of 726.00
feet to a point; thence South a distance of 660.87 feet to a point; thence S89°48"E a distance
of 219.26 feet to a point; thence South a distance of 353.02 feet to the Point of Beginning;
thence South a distance of 100.00 feet to a point; thence S89°48'E a distance of 215.74 feet to
a point; thence North a distance of 100.00 feet to a point; thence N89°48'W a distance of
215.74 feet to the Point of Beginning.

 

5. Approval of Resolution No. 2724 authorizing the continuation of the account fund for the City
of Muskogee entitled "Solid Waste Improvements" and designating the manner in which said
account shall be operated for the upcoming budget year 2018-2019, or take other necessary
action. (Greg Riley)

 

6. Approval of lowest bids for the following road material:  Number sixty-seven (67) Wash Rock,
3" Pit Run, 12" Pit Run, and number two (2) Cover Material to Kemp Quarries and Limestone
Screenings to Kemp Quarries; Asphalt Sand Alternate number one (1) and Fill Sand Alternate
number two (2) to Muskogee Sand; Asphaltic Concrete-Type B & C Alternate number one (1) 
to Tulsa Asphalt;  and alternate number two (2) to Robert's Quarries; and alternate number
three (3) to Tulsa Asphalt; Hot-Cold Patching Material to Tulsa Asphalt; 1 1/2" Aggregate
Base to Kemp Quarries, or take other necessary action. (Greg Riley)

 

7. Approval of the lowest bids as follows: (a) 3500 psi at $85.00 per cubic yards; (b) 3500 psi
High Early concrete at $90.00 per cubic yards; (c) 3000 psi at $84.00 per cubic yards; (d)
Portland Dry Mason at $70.00 per sack; (e) Flow Fill at $60.00 per cubic yards; (f) City Pay
Dray at $60.00 all to Muskogee Ready Mix, all for FY 2018/2019, or take other necessary
action. (Greg Riley)

 

8. Approval of the highest bids for a five (5) year lease term of Muskogee-Davis Regional
Airport’s grazing land beginning June 1, 2018 and ending May 31, 2023, or take other
necessary action. (Mike Stewart)



 

9. Approval of the appointment of Monte Wapaha to serve a four (4) year term on the Airport
Board, beginning June 1, 2018, and ending May 31, 2022, replacing Weldon Stout, or take
other necessary action. (Councilor Derrick Reed)

 

REGULAR AGENDA
 

10. Consider approval of Ordinance No. 4047-A, amending the City of Muskogee Code of
Ordinances by amending Chapter 74, Section 74-237, Economic Development Fund,
Establishing a one-year appropriation to the general account to be used for unrestricted
Economic Development projects; Providing for Repealer, Severability, and Declaring an
Emergency. (Roy D. Tucker)

 

11. Consider approval of an Agreement For Household Waste Collection Services between the
City of Muskogee and Heritage Environmental Services, providing contractual services
associated with the collection, transportation, insuring reuse opportunities and disposal of
residentially generated household hazardous waste materials for events held in June 2, 2018
and October 20, 2018, or take other necessary action.  (Greg Riley)

 

RECOGNIZE CITIZENS WISHING TO SPEAK TO THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL.

Council Rules of Decorum limit citizen comments to three (3) minutes. Any person desiring
to speak is required to sign-in with the City Clerk, provide their name, address, and the
particular issue they wish to address. Under Oklahoma law, the Council Members are
prohibited from discussing or taking any action on items not on today’s agenda. If written
materials are to be submitted to the Council twelve (12) copies should be made available, and
may not be returned.
 

12. Consider an Executive Session to discuss and take possible action on the following:
 

a. Pursuant to Section 307B.2, Title 25, Oklahoma Statutes, consider convening in executive
session to discuss negotiations with the Fraternal Order of Police, Lodge #95, and if necessary,
take appropriate action in open session.

 

ADJOURN
 



   
Regular City Council           
Meeting Date: 05/29/2018  
Initiator: Ashley Wallace, Office Adm 1
Department: City Clerk
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION May 14, 2018.

BACKGROUND:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
05-14-2018 ccmin 



MINUTES
 

 
OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE,

OKLAHOMA, MET IN REGULAR SESSION, IN
THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS OF CITY HALL

MONDAY, MAY 14, 2018
 

The Council of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, met in Regular Session in Council Chambers of City
Hall, Monday, May 14, 2018, at 5:30 p.m., with Mayor Coburn presiding.

Invocation was given by Mayor Bob Coburn
 
Flag Salute was led by Mayor Bob Coburn
 
Meeting was called to order by Mayor John R. Coburn and the City Clerk called the roll as follows:
 

Present: Mayor John R. Coburn; Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston; Councilmember Jaime Stout;
Councilmember Patrick Cale; Councilmember Dan Hall; Councilmember Wayne Johnson;
Councilmember Derrick Reed; Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Absent: Councilmember Marlon Coleman 

Staff
Present:

Mike Miller, City Manager; Mike Stewart, Assistant City Manager; Roy Tucker, City
Attorney; Tammy L. Tracy, City Clerk; Gary Garvin, City Planner; Greg Riley, Public Works
Director; Matthew Beese, Assistant City Attorney; Michael O'Dell, Fire Chief; Kelly Plunkett,
Human Resources Director; Rex Eskridge, Police Chief; Marcie Gilliam, Strategic Financial
Analyst; Jean Kingston, Treasurer; Chad Farmer, Deputy Police Chief; Brian Fuller, President
IAFF Local #57 

               
Excuse Members not present.

 
  Motion was made by Councilmember Ivory Vann, seconded by Deputy Mayor Janey

Boydston approve to excuse members not present. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Councilmember Jaime
Stout, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Dan Hall, Councilmember
Wayne Johnson, Councilmember Derrick Reed, Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: SPECIAL CALL CITY COUNCIL APRIL 16, 2018 AND APRIL
20, 2018 AND CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION APRIL 23, 2018.

  

 
  Motion was made by Councilmember Dan Hall, seconded by Deputy Mayor Janey

Boydston to approve minutes:  Special Call City Council April 16, 2018 and April 20,
2018 and City Council Regular Session April 23, 2018. 



  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Councilmember Jaime
Stout, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Dan Hall, Councilmember
Wayne Johnson, Councilmember Derrick Reed, Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
CONSENT AGENDA

 
  Motion was made by Councilmember Dan Hall, seconded by Councilmember Jaime

Stout  to approve Consent Agenda. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Councilmember Jaime
Stout, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Dan Hall, Councilmember
Wayne Johnson, Councilmember Derrick Reed, Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
The following items are considered to be routine by the City Council and will not be read
aloud. The Consent Agenda will be enacted with one motion and should discussion be desired
on an item, that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda prior to action and
considered separately prior to the Regular Agenda.
 

 
1 Approval of claims for all City departments April 12, 2018 through May 2, 2018.   
 
2 Approval of the Groupon Merchant Agreement for marketing and promotional services at

River Country Family Water Park, or take other necessary action. (Mark Wilkerson)
  

 
3 Approval of final payment for Muskogee Project No. 2017023, Pollution Control Basket

Screen, to KBC Construction in the amount of $16,067.35, or take other necessary action. 
(Greg Riley)

  

 
4 Approval of the contract Change Order and Final Payment to Dirt Work Done Right, LLC,

for the Demolition Contract 16756 CDBG 16 Bid Group 38, in the amount of $1,375.00, or
take other necessary action. (Tish Callahan)

  

 
5 Approval of awarding the mowing contracts as follows: Base Bid No. One (1) , No. Two

(2) and No. Five (5) to SB Services; Base Bid No. Three (3) and No. Four (4) to Grass
Monkey; and the Turnpike Mowing Contract to D & D Ag Services, or take other
necessary action. (Greg Riley)

  

 
6 Approval authorizing the Mayor to cast a ballot on behalf of the City of Muskogee for the

OMAG Board of Trustees, or take other necessary action. (Mike Miller)
  

 
7 Approval to update the Muskogee 2020 Strategic Plan as discussed at the April 20, 2018

Special Call Council meeting, or take other necessary action. (Mike Miller)
  

 
8 Approval of receiving donated funds for the month of March 2018, in the amount of   



8 Approval of receiving donated funds for the month of March 2018, in the amount of
$409.00 for the City's Animal Shelter Sponsorship Program as per the attached list, or take
other necessary action. (Rex Eskridge)

  

 
9 Approval of the appointment of Mary Beth Hicks, to serve on the Muskogee County

Transit Authority, replacing Lisa Benjamin, subject to a term to be established in the
bylaws, or take other necessary action. (Councilor Wayne Johnson)

  

 
10 Approval of Resolution No. 2722 supporting the enactment of Senate Bill 86 and opposing

a State Highway 69 Bypass, or take other necessary action. (Mayor Bob Coburn and
Councilor Marlon Coleman)

  

 
REGULAR AGENDA

 
11 Hold a Public Hearing and take action on the approval of Ordinance No. 4045-A rezoning

the property located on the northwest corner of 3rd and Kalamazoo, more particularly
described in the Ordinance, from "C-2" General Commercial District to
"R-1" Single-Family Residential District, and if approved, authorize Staff to revise the
Official Zoning Map of the City to reflect said change, or take other necessary action.
(Gary D. Garvin)

Mayor Bob Coburn opened the Public Hearing.
 
Planning Director Gary Garvin stated the applicant, Deshuana "Willis" Dewberry, is
requesting the property located on the northwest corner of South 3rd Street and Kalamazoo
Avenue be rezoned from "C-2" General Commercial District to "R-1"  Single-Family
Residential District to allow the property to be developed residentially in the future (see
attached site plan/notice).  According to the Land Use Map, the area west of Main Street
and south of West Southside Boulevard is classified as residential. Therefore, the request to
rezone to "R-1" Single-Family Residential complies with the Comprehensive Plan and
Land Use Map adopted by the City of Muskogee.  Notices have been sent to the property
owners within 300 foot radius, as required, and published in the paper twenty (20) days
prior to the Public Hearing.  A Public Hearing will be held on the following days:

May 7, 2018 at 9:00 a.m.: City of Muskogee Planning & Zoning Commission
May 7, 2018 at 4:00 p.m.: Public Works Committee
May 14, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. Muskogee City Council Meeting

Mayor Bob Coburn closed the Public Hearing.

  

 
  Motion was made by Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, seconded by Councilmember Dan

Hall  to approve Ordinance No. 4045-A rezoning the property located on the northwest
corner of 3rd and Kalamazoo, more particularly described in the Ordinance, from "C-2"
General Commercial District to "R-1" Single-Family Residential District, and if
approved, authorize Staff to revise the Official Zoning Map of the City to reflect said
change.
  

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Councilmember Jaime



  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Councilmember Jaime
Stout, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Dan Hall, Councilmember
Wayne Johnson, Councilmember Derrick Reed, Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
12 Hold a Public Hearing and take action on the approval of Resolution No. 2721 amending

the Land Use Map regarding property located within part of Sections 2 and 3, T14N,
R18E, more particularly described in the resolution from Industrial to Transitional
Residential, and if approved, authorize Staff to revise the Land Use Map of the City to
reflect said change.  (Gary D. Garvin)

Mayor Bob Coburn opened the Public Hearing.
 
Planning Director Gary Garvin stated previously the City Council denied a request by
Phillip and Penny Coppin to rezone the property located on South Cherokee Street, south of
Cherokee Drive, from "C-1" Local Commercial to "I-1" Light Industrial to allow a rental
business to be located on the property. The request complied with the Land Use
Map adopted by the City of Muskogee on June 4, 2012. When the rezoning was denied
(2/12/2018), City Council requested that Staff review the Land Use Map and consider
changing the classification.  Property that complies with the Land Use Map should be
approved or the Land Use Map amended.  Since the request to rezone by Mr. and Mrs.
Coppin was denied, Staff has reviewed the Land Use Map and based on the following
information has determined that amending the Land Use Map is not recommended for this
large industrial area. The center of the industrial area is located at the intersection of two
(2) highways (Highway 64 and Highway 165). The large industrial area also contains two
(2) railroad tracks running parallel with each other through the middle of the area. The area
classified as industrial by the Land Use Map contains 1,718 acres (2.7 square miles) and
consists of several existing industrial uses, large parcels, vacant land, floodplain and is
isolated from established residential areas. There is approximately 60 residential structures
within the 1,718 acres. The large majority of the area is currently zoned industrial. 
Additionally, the area where the rezoning was denied and being considered under the
proposed resolution (Cherokee Street, Cherokee Drive, Missouri- Pacific Railroad, and
Peak Blvd./ Hwy 165) containing 58 +/- acres is all currently zoned commercial or
industrial, there is no residential zoning within this area.  Amending the Land Use Map to
Transitional Residential would allow new residential structures to be located within this
area. Many industrial uses have outdoor storage, repair bays, and fuel whose appearance,
light, noise, and odors make them incompatible with residential uses. This area is an ideal
location for industrial uses, due to the existing zoning, large parcels, access to rail and the
highway system, and isolation from established residential.  The notice was published in the
paper on March 6, 2018. A Public Hearing will be held on the following days:
 
May 7, 2018 at 9:00 a.m. City of Muskogee Planning & Zoning Commission
May 7, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. City of Muskogee Public Works Committee
May 14, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. Muskogee City Council Meeting
 
Mayor Bob Coburn closed the Public Hearing.

  

 
  Motion was made by Councilmember Wayne Johnson, seconded by Councilmember



  Motion was made by Councilmember Wayne Johnson, seconded by Councilmember
Patrick Cale to DENY the approval of Resolution No. 2721 amending the Land Use
Map regarding property located within part of Sections 2 and 3, T14N, R18E, more
particularly described in the resolution from Industrial to Transitional Residential, and if
approved, authorize Staff to revise the Land Use Map of the City to reflect said change. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Councilmember Jaime
Stout, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Dan Hall, Councilmember
Wayne Johnson, Councilmember Derrick Reed, Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
13 (No Action Taken):  Hold a Public Hearing to discuss the City of Muskogee Budget for

Fiscal Year 2018-2019, and take any necessary action. (Mike Miller)

Mayor Bob Coburn opened the Public Hearing.

City Manager Mike Miller discussed the City of Muskogee Budget for Fiscal Year
2018-2019.

Brian Fuller 3200 S. 55th St. East, Muskogee, Oklahoma stated he is the President of
I.A.F.F. Local #57, Muskogee Firefighters, stated the budget pertaining to the Firefighter's
personal expenditure category shows a comparison of FY 2017, 2018, and the proposed
2019 budgets. When comparing the 2017 budget and the 2019 proposed budget there is a
difference of an estimated $83,000.00 to $84,000.00. In 2016 the rank of Firefighters was
26, and in 2017, 2018, and the 2019 proposed budget the rank is 26. The Fire Department is
short two (2) members and have been short two (2)
members the past two (2) budgets and will continue to be short two (2) firefighters in 2019.
Mr. Fuller stated only the Council has the right to downsize the Fire Department. He feels
the City Manager has downsized the Fire Department from 94 to 92 members and would
like to know if this is something that Council has approved.  If this has been approved he
cannot find the information in the Council minutes or meetings from the past (3) years. He
stated he would like to have the two (2) positions filled and this is a decision that should be
made by City Council, as stated in the City Charter, and not a decision made by the City
Manager. 

City Manager Mike Miller stated funding was down across the board and not just the Fire
Department is being affected, but Staff has been cut back as well.

Mayor Bob Coburn closed the Public Hearing.

Councilmember Wayne Johnson stated this has been an outstanding budget process.

City Manager Mike Miller stated it is possible to bring the budget back to the following
Council meeting for a formal approval.
 

  

 
14 Consider approval of Ordinance No. 4044-A amending the City of Muskogee Code of   



14 Consider approval of Ordinance No. 4044-A amending the City of Muskogee Code of
Ordinances, Chapter 58, Parks and Recreation, Section 58-21, Fees Generally; Authorizing
the City Manager to Establish or Modify certain fees; providing for Repealer, Severability,
and Setting an Effective Date, or take other necessary action. (Mike Stewart)

Assistant City Manager Mike Stewart stated the City Council approves fees for City
services, but occasionally some of our park enterprise funds need the flexibility to respond
to market demand. This ordinance allows for the City Manager or his designee to set fees
for participation in special events, activities and programs.  Examples might be the fee for a
new kind of exercise class or a promotional pricing for membership or season passes. The
Council would be notified of these fees within ten (10) days of adoption.

  

 
  Motion was made by Councilmember Wayne Johnson, seconded by Councilmember

Patrick Cale  to approve Ordinance No. 4044-A amending the City of Muskogee Code
of Ordinances, Chapter 58, Parks and Recreation, Section 58-21, Fees Generally;
Authorizing the City Manager to Establish or Modify certain fees; providing for
Repealer, Severability, and Setting an Effective Date. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Councilmember Jaime
Stout, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Dan Hall, Councilmember
Wayne Johnson, Councilmember Derrick Reed, Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
15 Consider approval to direct Staff to perform additional research relating to home day cares,

as discussed in the Public Works Committee of May 6, 2018, or take other necessary
action. (Councilor Vann)

Councilmember Ivory Vann stated motion was made to direct Staff to invite a
representative from DHS to speak on State regulations regarding home day cares, and to
research and bring back for further consideration the following information: 1) a map
displaying location of all licensed home day cares; 2) any information provided by
Committee speakers, Ms. Thomas and Ms. Logan; 3) any traffic information available for
the cities studied; and, 4) any zoning requirements of home days cares from Ft. Gibson,
Wagoner, and Tahlequah.

  

 
  Motion was made by Councilmember Ivory Vann, seconded by Councilmember Patrick

Cale to approve to direct Staff to perform additional research relating to home day
cares, as discussed in the Public Works Committee of May 6, 2018. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Councilmember Jaime
Stout, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Dan Hall, Councilmember
Wayne Johnson, Councilmember Derrick Reed, Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
16 Discuss a potential future signage project acknowledging nationally-known Muskogee   



16 Discuss a potential future signage project acknowledging nationally-known Muskogee
citizens at entry points to Muskogee, and provide direction to Staff. (Councilor Dan Hall)

Mayor Bob Coburn asked Councilmember Dan Hall after giving direction to Staff, would
Councilor Hall be willing to direct a Committee that would look into this and make
recommendations back to Council.

Councilmember Dan Hall stated he would love to. 

  

 
  Motion was made by Mayor John R. Coburn, seconded by Councilmember Jaime

Stout to approve to establish an Ad Hoc Committee to look at the feasibility and
populate the Committee with Dan Hall as Chairman with other members as he selects. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Councilmember Jaime
Stout, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Dan Hall, Councilmember
Wayne Johnson, Councilmember Derrick Reed, Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
RECOGNIZE CITIZENS WISHING TO SPEAK TO THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL.

Council Rules of Decorum limit citizen comments to three (3) minutes. Any person desiring to
speak is required to sign-in with the City Clerk, provide their name, address, and the
particular issue they wish to address. Under Oklahoma law, the Council Members are
prohibited from discussing or taking any action on items not on today’s agenda. If written
materials are to be submitted to the Council twelve (12) copies should be made available, and
may not be returned.

Stephen Ezell, 6121 S. 6th St. East, Muskogee, Oklahoma stated there are plenty of volunteer
services within the community. Many of the organizations are not successful without the aid of
volunteers. He would love to encourage people of all ages to find themselves a volunteer service, it
is the best thing they can do with their free time.
  

 
17 Consider an Executive Session to discuss and take possible action on the following:
 
  Motion was made by Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, seconded by Councilmember

Wayne Johnson to approve an Executive session. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Councilmember Jaime
Stout, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Dan Hall, Councilmember
Wayne Johnson, Councilmember Derrick Reed, Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
a Pursuant to Section 307B.4, Title 25, Oklahoma Statutes, consider convening in Executive   



a Pursuant to Section 307B.4, Title 25, Oklahoma Statutes, consider convening in Executive
Session to discuss the worker’s compensation claim of Philip Blair, and if necessary, take
appropriate action in open session. (Roy D. Tucker)

City Manager Mike Miller left the meeting during Executive Session.

Council reconvened from Executive Session at 6:17 p.m.

  

 
  Motion was made by Councilmember Patrick Cale, seconded by Councilmember Dan

Hall to approve the worker’s compensation claim of Philip Blair in the amount of
$3653.00. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Councilmember Jaime
Stout, Councilmember Patrick Cale, Councilmember Dan Hall, Councilmember
Wayne Johnson, Councilmember Derrick Reed, Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
ADJOURN

 

__________________________________
JOHN R. COBURN, MAYOR

 
 
 
 

_______________________________
TAMMY L. TRACY, CITY CLERK

 
 



   
Regular City Council 1.           
Meeting Date: 05/29/2018  
Initiator: Donnie Wimbley, Purchasing Director
Department: Purchasing
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approval of claims for all City departments May 3, 2018 through May 15, 2018.

BACKGROUND:
Claims List for all City Departments.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve of the claims for all City Departments May 3, 2018 through May 15, 2018.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Claims List 





















   
Regular City Council 2.           
Meeting Date: 05/29/2018  
Initiator: Gary Garvin, Planning Director
Department: Planning
Staff Information Source: Gary D. Garvin, Director of Planning & Economic Development / Facilities

Board 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approval of Resolution No. 2723 adopting and amending Appendix A of the City of Muskogee Code
pertaining to all fees, charges, and rates for the Muskogee Civic Center.  (Councilor Wayne Johnson)

BACKGROUND:
As you are aware, the Management Contract between Spectra and the City of Muskogee was terminated
on March 1, 2018.  Upon the City of Muskogee resuming the management duties of the Civic Center,
staff determined the rates currently set by Spectra needed to be reviewed and modified.  As part of the
review process, staff requested the Facilities Board review the current rates (Spectra Rates) and suggest
any changes to the fees, charges and rates. 

On February 8, 2018 the Facilities Board established a sub-committee to review the rates.  The
sub-committee consisted of Perline Boyattia, Wayne Johnson, David Ragsdale and  Pete Roberts.  The
sub-committee met twice over the past few weeks comparing the current rates with the rates of other
centers including, Martin Luther King Jr. Community Center, Hamlin's El Toro Event Center, Kilharen's
Lodge, Oklahoma Music Hall of Fame, and the rates of the Civic Center when previously under the
City of Muskogee management (FY2014-15).  Upon review, the sub-committee recommended the
suggested rates to the Facilities Board (see attached comparison).

On May 10, 2018 the Facilities Board approved the suggested rates and is recommending City
Council approve and adopt the amended rates. A copy of the Resolution and amended rates are attached
for review.  The amended rates decreased approximately 40% from what Spectra was charging.  Below
is an example of what Spectra charged and the proposed new rate.
  
Rooms "C" &" D" Spectra City
     
Rental Fee $1,000.00 $1,000.00
20% Service
Charge $200.00 No Charge

Sound $100.00 Included
20% Service
Charge $20.00 No Charge

Projector $100.00 Included
20% Service
Charge $20.00 No Charge

Utilities $35.00 Included
20% Service
Charge $7.00 No Charge



Internet $25.00 Included
Set-up/Take Down $100.00 Included
     
Total $1,607.00 $1,000.00

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the Resolution.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Resolution - Civic Center Rates 
Comparison Room Rates 
Appendix A - Revised 



RESOLUTION NO. 2723

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
MUSKOGEE ADOPTING AMENDMENT TO APPENDIX A 
PERTAINING TO ALL FEES, CHARGES AND RATES AS SET OUT 
IN THE ATTACHED LIST (CIVIC CENTER ROOM RENTAL), AND 
SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

WHEREAS, the City of Muskogee has prepared an Amendment to Appendix A to the 
City Code, pertaining to fees, charges and rates as per attached; and

WHEREAS, The Facility Board of the City of Muskogee, has reviewed and are 
recommending the adoption of said fees, charges, and rental rates to the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, The Facilities Board believes that the increases are in the best interest of the 
citizen; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA, THAT: 

THAT, Appendix A, Civic Center Room Rental, of the Muskogee Code of Ordinances as 
attached hereto as Exhibit A is hereby approved and adopted; and

THAT, the public is hereby notified of adoption of amended fee schedule and that copies 
of the amended fee schedule is available for review in the office of the City Clerk; and

THAT, the City Clerk shall cause one copy of this resolution to be filed with the office of 
the County Clerk of Muskogee County; and

THAT, the City Clerk shall cause one copy of this resolution to be filed with the Law 
Library of Muskogee County; and

THAT the City Clerk shall keep a lease one copy of the amended fee schedule to the 
Code of Ordinances in the office of the City Clerk for public use, inspection, and examination; 
and

THAT, any fee, charge or rate that is increased as a result of the adoption of this 
resolution shall be in effect from and after the July 1, 2018.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this _____ day of _________, 2018 by the City Council 
of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma.



__________________________________   
JOHN ROBERT COBURN, MAYOR

ATTEST:

__________________________________
TAMMY L. TRACY, CITY CLERK
(seal)

Approved as to form and legality this _____ day of _______________, 2018.

__________________________________
ROY D. TUCKER, CITY ATTORNEY





CIVIC CENTER

2-503 ROOM  RENTAL

Room
8 a.m. to 12 a.m. 
midnight

A $250.00

B $250.00

A&B Combined $400.00

C $500.00

D $600.00

C&D Combined $1,000.00

E $600.00

F $500.00

E&F Combined $1,000.00

Whole Arena $2,500.00

Arena (main floor 
only)

$1,500.00

Conference Room $25.00

Kitchen $100.00

Parking Lot $300.00
Includes access to 
bathrooms

Sign $25.00
Only charged if room 
is not rented

Basketball Court 
Install/Tear Down

$800

Dance Floor $100.00

Room Set-Up / 
Housekeeping

$30.00 Hour

1 hour set-up and 1 
hour take-down 
(housekeeping) 
included in rental fee

Event Security $30.00 Hour

A deposit of 150.00 is required for room rental

Use of sound system, projector, internet, score board, utilities and 
sign are included in cost of room or arena rental fee.



   
Regular City Council 3.           
Meeting Date: 05/29/2018  
Initiator: Susan Ross, Office Adm 1
Department: Planning
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approval of a Resolution No. 2725 declaring one (1) parcel of property, more particularly described in
the resolution, as surplus to the needs of the City and authorize the conveyance of said property, or
take other necessary action. (Tish Callahan)

BACKGROUND:
The parcel located on Columbus Street is being requested by Charles Struehmer at no cost through the
Incentive Property Program.  Mr. Struehmer will be required to obtain a building permit, within one
year, for a new single-family dwelling.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve Resolution No. 2725 declaring one (1) parcel of property as surplus to the needs of the City
and authorize the conveyance of said property.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Map 
2725 RES 05-29-2016 Higgins Addition 



AutoCAD SHX Text
147

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
144

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
41.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
158

AutoCAD SHX Text
158

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
158

AutoCAD SHX Text
158

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLOSED BY ORD. #101-A

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLUMBUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
 A D D I T I O N

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH  20TH  STREET



RESOLUTION NO. 2725

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY PRESENTLY IN THE POSSESSION 
OF THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE TO BE SURPLUS TO THE NEEDS OF THE CITY AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO DISPOSE OF SAID REAL PROPERTY, SAID TRACT 
OF LAND DESCRIBED AS:

Lot 2, Block 1, Higgins Addition, 

CITY OF MUSKOGEE, MUSKOGEE COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA.

WHEREAS, the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma has in its possession certain real property which 
are no longer needed; and

WHEREAS, the City of Muskogee desires to dispose of said real property, which are no longer 
needed, as surplus property according to the provisions of the Charter and the Ordinances of said City;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA;

SECTION 1: That property described as:

Lot 2, Block 1, Higgins Addition

City of Muskogee, Muskogee County, State of Oklahoma, is hereby declared to be surplus to the needs of 
the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, and the City Manager is authorized to dispose of said real property.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE, 
OKLAHOMA, THIS ______ DAY OF ______________, 2018.

__________________________________
JOHN R. COBURN, MAYOR

ATTEST:

_______________________________
TAMMY L. TRACY, CITY CLERK
Seal

Approved as to form and legality this _____ day of ____________, 2018.

________________________________________
ROY TUCKER, CITY ATTORNEY



   
Regular City Council 4.           
Meeting Date: 05/29/2018  
Initiator: Gary Garvin, Planning Director

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approval of a Preliminary and Final Plat of Wallingford Addition, consisting of two (2) lots on 2.28
acres, located at 11 Beckman Drive, or take other necessary action. (Tish Callahan)  

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
A part of the NW1/4 of the NE1/4 of Section 19, T15N, R18E, Muskogee County, Oklahoma, more
particularly described as follows: Commencing at the NE corner of the NW1/4 NE1/4 of Section 19,
T15N, R18E, Muskogee County, Oklahoma; thence due South along the East boundary of said NW1/4
NE1/4 a distance of 1321.75 feet to a point; thence N89°48'00"W a distance of 300.94 feet to the Point
of Beginning: thence N89°48'00"W a distance of 362.84 feet to a point; thence due North a distance of
195.99 feet to a point; thence N63°34'00"E a distance of 66.10 feet to a point of curvature; thence along
a curve to the Right having a radius of 219.47 feet a distance of 101.43 feet to a point of tangency;
thence S89°48'00"E a distance of 0.00; thence due South a distance of 40.0 feet to a point; thence
S89°48'00"E a distance of 195.74 feet to a point; thence S00°12'00"E a distance of 0.00 feet to a point of
curvature; thence along a curve to the left having a radius of 50 feet a distance of 32.35 feet to a point;
thence S36°52'10"E a distance of 0.00 feet to the point of tangency; thence due South a distance of
178.75 feet to the Point of Beginning.
AND
A part of the NW1/4 of the NE1/4 in Section 19, T15N, R18E of the I.B.&M., Muskogee County,
Oklahoma, more particularly described as follows, to wit: Commencing at the Northeast corner of said
NW1/4 NE1/4 of Section 19, thence N89°48'W a distance of 726.00 feet to a point; thence South a
distance of 660.87 feet to a point; thence S89°48"E a distance of 219.26 feet to a point; thence South a
distance of 353.02 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence South a distance of 100.00 feet to a point;
thence S89°48'E a distance of 215.74 feet to a point; thence North a distance of 100.00 feet to a point;
thence N89°48'W a distance of 215.74 feet to the Point of Beginning.

BACKGROUND:
The applicants, James and Chelsi Wallingford, have indicated the property is being platted into two
(2) lots on 2.28 acres to allow the property to be developed residentially.  The applicant is proposing to
build a new single-family dwelling on Lot 1.  Lot 2 has an existing single-family
dwelling.   Additionally, there is an existing 60' Road Easement that will be vacated upon approval of
the final plat.  There are two existing single-family dwellings located within the easement.  Subdivision
Review Committee reviewed the Preliminary and Final Plats, and recommended approval with
conditions (all conditions have been complied with). 

RECOMMENDED STAFF ACTION:
Approve the Preliminary and Final Plat of Wallingford Addition.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments



Attachments
Wallingford Addition 





   
Regular City Council 5.           
Meeting Date: 05/29/2018  
Submitted For:  Greg Riley, Public Works  Initiator: Christy Byrd, Office

Administrator I
Department: Public Works
Staff Information Source: Greg Riley, Director of Public Works 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approval of Resolution No. 2724 authorizing the continuation of the account fund for the City of
Muskogee entitled "Solid Waste Improvements" and designating the manner in which said account shall
be operated for the upcoming budget year 2018-2019, or take other necessary action. (Greg Riley)

BACKGROUND:
Resolution No. 2724 addresses the funding for the new equipment and improvements in the Solid Waste
Division of Public Works.  This fund in the past has brought in approximately $368,000.00 in revenue
per year.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve Resolution No. 2724 authorizing the continuation of the account fund for the City of
Muskogee entitled "Solid Waste Improvements" and designating the manner in which said account shall
be operated.

Fiscal Impact

FUNDING SOURCE:
Resolution Solid Waste

Attachments
2724 RES 05-29-2018 Solid Waste 



RESOLUTION NO. 2724 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CONTINUATION OF THE 

ACCOUNT FUND FOR THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE ENTITLED 

"SOLID WASTE IMPROVEMENTS" AND DESIGNATING THE 

MANNER INWHICH SAID ACCOUNT SHALL BE OPERATED. 

 
 

 

THAT: 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MUSKO GE E, 

 

 
 

The account fund entitled "Solid Waste Improvements" which is financed by means of the deposit of two 

dollars and fifty cents ($2.50) from each monthly service fee collected pursuant to Section 82-132 of the 

Muskogee City Code is hereby authorized from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019. 

The monies deposited' in the account shall be used for the purpose of maintenance, repair, and 

improvement of the solid waste system within the City of Muskogee,  including, but not limited  to all 

capital improvements items. 

 
This fund shall expire June 30, 2019, unless renewed by the City Council of the City of Muskogee. 

 

 
 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND EFFECTIVE THIS    DAY OF MAY 2018. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

JOHN R. COBURN, Mayor 
 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

 
Tammy L. Tracy, City Clerk 

 

 
 
 

Approved as to form and legality this   day of   , 2018. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Roy D. Tucker, City Attorney 



   
Regular City Council 6.           
Meeting Date: 05/29/2018  
Submitted For:  Greg Riley, Public Works  Initiator: Christy Byrd, Office

Administrator I
Department: Public Works
Staff Information Source: Greg Riley; Director of Public Works, Jim Wixom; Assistant Director of

Public Works-Operations; Donnie Wimbley, Purchasing Director 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approval of lowest bids for the following road material:  Number sixty-seven (67) Wash Rock, 3" Pit
Run, 12" Pit Run, and number two (2) Cover Material to Kemp Quarries and Limestone Screenings to
Kemp Quarries; Asphalt Sand Alternate number one (1) and Fill Sand Alternate number two (2) to
Muskogee Sand; Asphaltic Concrete-Type B & C Alternate number one (1)  to Tulsa Asphalt;  and
alternate number two (2) to Robert's Quarries; and alternate number three (3) to Tulsa Asphalt; Hot-Cold
Patching Material to Tulsa Asphalt; 1 1/2" Aggregate Base to Kemp Quarries, or take other necessary
action. (Greg Riley)

BACKGROUND:
The Public Works-Street Division solicited bids for Road Materials for repair and Maintenance
projects.  Bid Documents and Bid Tab Sheets are attached for reference.  These prices will remain firm
for a period of one (1) year beginning with fiscal year 2018-2019.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve lowest bids for the following road material:  Number sixty seven (67) Wash Rock, 3" Pit Run,
12" Pit Run, and number two (2) Cover Material to Kemp Quarries and Limestone Screenings to Kemp
Quarries, Asphalt Sand Alternate number one (1) and Fill Sand Alternate number two (2) to Muskogee
Sand; Asphaltic Concrete-Type B & C  Alternate number one (1)  to Tulsa Asphalt  and alternate
number two (2) to Robert's Quarries and alternate number three (3) to Tulsa Asphalt; Hot-Cold Patching
Material to Tulsa Asphalt; 1 1/2" Aggregate Base to Kemp Quarries

Fiscal Impact

FUNDING SOURCE:
Street/Alley Miscellaneous Operation Supply.  Account Number 211-6030-431-52-90.

Attachments
2017-2018 
2018-2019 















   
Regular City Council 7.           
Meeting Date: 05/29/2018  
Submitted For:  Greg Riley, Public Works  Initiator: Christy Byrd, Office

Administrator I
Department: Public Works
Staff Information Source: Greg Riley, Director of Public Works; Jim Wixom, Assistant Director of

Public Works-Operations; Donnie Wimbley, Purchasing Director 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approval of the lowest bids as follows: (a) 3500 psi at $85.00 per cubic yards; (b) 3500 psi High Early
concrete at $90.00 per cubic yards; (c) 3000 psi at $84.00 per cubic yards; (d) Portland Dry Mason at
$70.00 per sack; (e) Flow Fill at $60.00 per cubic yards; (f) City Pay Dray at $60.00 all to Muskogee
Ready Mix, all for FY 2018/2019, or take other necessary action. (Greg Riley)

BACKGROUND:
The Public Works - Street Division solicited annual bids for Concrete for repair for Maintenance
projects.  Bid tab sheets are attached for your reference.  These prices will remain for a period of one (1)
year beginning with Fiscal year 2018-2019.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the lowest bids as follows: (a) 3500 psi concrete at $85.00 per cubic yards, (b) 3500 psi High
Early concrete at $90.00 per cubic yards, (c) 3000 psi concrete at $84.00 per cubic yards, (d) Portland
Dry Mason at $70.00 per sack, (e) Flow Fill at $60.00 per cubic yards, (f) City Pay Dray at $60.00 to
Muskogee Ready Mix for fiscal year 2018/2019.

Fiscal Impact

FUNDING SOURCE:
Street/Alley Miscellaneous Operation Supply.  Account #211-6030-431-52-90.

Attachments
2017-2018 
2018-2019 







   
Regular City Council 8.           
Meeting Date: 05/29/2018  
Submitted For:  Mike Stewart, Assistant City Manager 
Initiator: Drew Saffell, Airport Manager
Department: Assistant City Manager
Staff Information Source: Drew Saffell 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approval of the highest bids for a five (5) year lease term of Muskogee-Davis Regional Airport’s
grazing land beginning June 1, 2018 and ending May 31, 2023, or take other necessary action. (Mike
Stewart)

BACKGROUND:
The Airport’s current grazing leases end on May 31, 2018.  In April 2018, airport staff put the grazing
land out for bid.  The City received several bids and the highest bids for each lot are listed below. The
bid tabulation sheet is attached for reference. These bids total $24,204.99 in yearly grazing revenue for
the airport during the five (5) year term beginning June 1, 2018. The bids are complete and meet the
requirements of both the Airport and the City of Muskogee.  
 
Lot 1, Tract 1 – Jim Chappell $4,843.13
Lot 2, Tract 2 – Curt Daubs $6,621.00
Lot 3, Tracts 3, 4, 5 – Triple J Ranch $34,930.00
Lot 4, Tracts 6, 7 – Kay Anderson $16,415.00
Lot 5, Tract 8 – Triple J Ranch $3,040.00
Lot 6, Tract 9 – Tommy Thomas $6,100.00
Lot 7, Tract 10 – Tommy Thomas $1,500.00
Lot 8, Tract 11, 12, 13 – Triple J Ranch $36,558.00
Lot 9, Tract 14 -  Jim Chappell $11,017.84

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the highest bids for a five (5) year lease term of Muskogee-Davis Regional Airport’s grazing
land beginning June 1, 2018 and ending May 31, 2023 or take other necessary action.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments



Tabulation Sheet Bid Item: Grazing Leases Airport/Old Landfill
City of Muskogee Date: 5/3/2018

Department: Muskogee-Davis Regional Airport

Approved by Purchasing:

Approved by City Council:

Vendors > Dan Leatherman
Airport

Lot 1 Tract #1 No Bid
Lot 2 Tract #2 No Bid
Lot 3 Tract #3,4,5 No Bid
Lot 4 Tract #6,7 No Bid
Lot 5 Tract #8 No Bid
Lot 6 Tract #9 No Bid
Lot 7 Tract #10 No Bid
Lot 8 Tract #11,12,13 No Bid
Lot 9 Tract #14 No Bid

Old Landfill
Lot 1 Tract # NA $20,800.00

Witnessed by: Approved by:





Tabulation Sheet Bid Item: Grazing Leases Airport/Old Landfill
City of Muskogee Date: 5/3/2018

Department: Muskogee-Davis Regional Airport

Approved by Purchasing: Date:

Approved by City Council: Date:

Vendors > Travis O'Neal Curt Daubs Triple J Ranch Jacky Reese Tommy Thomas
Airport

Lot 1 Tract #1 $3,000.00 No Bid $1,800.80 No Bid No Bid
Lot 2 Tract #2 $3,000.00 $6,621.00 $3,524.80 No Bid No Bid
Lot 3 Tract #3,4,5 $30,001.50 No Bid $34,930.00 No Bid No Bid
Lot 4 Tract #6,7 $12,080.00 No Bid $14,523.00 No Bid No Bid
Lot 5 Tract #8 $1,500.00 No Bid $3,040.00 No Bid No Bid
Lot 6 Tract #9 $4,808.15 $5,713.00 No Bid $5,200.00 $6,100.00
Lot 7 Tract #10 $300.00 No Bid No Bid $800.00 $1,500.00
Lot 8 Tract #11,12,13 $29,200.00 No Bid $36,558.00 No Bid No Bid
Lot 9 Tract #14 $9,703.00 No Bid $6,913.80 No Bid No Bid

Old Landfill
Lot 1 Tract # NA $13,725.00 No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

Witnessed by: Approved by:



   
Regular City Council 9.           
Meeting Date: 05/29/2018  
Initiator: Tammy Tracy, City Clerk
Department: City Clerk
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approval of the appointment of Monte Wapaha to serve a four (4) year term on the Airport Board,
beginning June 1, 2018, and ending May 31, 2022, replacing Weldon Stout, or take other necessary
action. (Councilor Derrick Reed)

BACKGROUND:
Mr. Weldon Stout was appointed to the Airport Board June 1, 2014. His term will expire May 31, 2018.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Recommend approval.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Monte Wapaha 



APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO A BOARD OR COMMISSION 

CITY OF MUSKOGEE 

CITY COUNCIL 

APPLICATION FOR CIT\' COUNCIL APPOINTMENT TO A BOARD 
OR COMMISSION 

Application Instructions: 

• Complete lhc entire application form (copies of the form arc acceptable).
• Applicants are strongly encouraged to attach a current resume or biography.
• Specifically list the names of the boards or commissions to which you are applying (multiple

selections arc allowed). Paperwork cannot be appropriately processed unless specific boards or
commissions are listed. 

• Return application along with your resume to:
Office of the City Clerk, 229 W. Okmulgee, Muskogee, OK 74403 or by fax 918-6�39S. 

• This form can be obtained electronically at http://www.cityofmuskogec.com, or by calling the City
Clerk's Office at: (918) 684-o270. 

Board(s) or Commission(s) for which you would like lo be considered: 
Airport Board 

Your Full Your 
Legal Name: Monte P.T. Wapaha Preferred Name: ___________ _ 

Business Name: Love Bottling Company Home Address: 
-------------

Job Title/Employment Date: Key Account Manag er City Zip:_M_us_kog_ee_7440 __ 3 _________ _ 

Business Address: 3200 South 24th Street West Ward: 2 3 4 

Muskogee, OK 74401 
------------------ -------------

Business Phone: 916.682.3434 
------------

Fax: 918.683.4242 

Home Phone: 

 Cell Phone: 

Home Email:  

Business Email: mwapaha@lvbeverages.com 

Arc you registered to vole in City or Muskogee Elcctions.,h....._ @ 
Arc you a citizen orlhc United Stales? � No 

Personal Information: 

No 

'lne 9rf.ayor am£ Counci£ desire a 6roatf representation of 6acligrounds on 6oards am£ commissions. 

Education (high school, name and location of college or university, year graduated, and degree): 
Fort Gibson High School 
Various Colleges and Universities - no degree 

Page 1 of3 







   
Regular City Council 10.           
Meeting Date: 05/29/2018  
Submitted For: Roy Tucker, City Attorney  Initiator: Roy Tucker, City

Attorney
Department: City Attorney
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of Ordinance No. 4047-A, amending the City of Muskogee Code of Ordinances by
amending Chapter 74, Section 74-237, Economic Development Fund, Establishing a one-year
appropriation to the general account to be used for unrestricted Economic Development projects;
Providing for Repealer, Severability, and Declaring an Emergency. (Roy D. Tucker)

BACKGROUND:
As was discussed at the Special Call Council meeting on May 21, the Council gave direction to include
an allocation of $100,000.00 for fiscal year 2019, to be used for unrestricted economic development
projects. The proposed ordinance creates a new subsection within Economic Development general
account for this specific one-year allocation. This amendment does not disturb the 75%/25% allocation
to the general account and opportunity account, respectively.  Rather, it creates authority for the Council,
under this one-year allocation, to determine whether funding should be allocated to a specific Economic
Development project of the Council's choosing. Should any portion of the $100,000.00 remain
unexpended at the close of FY 2019, any remaining funds will remain in the general account, but may
then only be used in accordance with the existing criteria established by sections (a), (b) and (f).

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the ordinance.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
4047-A 5-29-2018 Economic Dev. Funds 



ORDINANCE NO. 4047-A 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES BY AMENDING CHAPTER 74, TAXATION, ARTICLE VIII, USE 

TAX, BY AMENDING SECTION 74-237, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND, 

ESTABLISHING A ONE-YEAR APPROPRIATION TO THE GENERAL 

ACCOUNT TO BE USED FOR UNRESTRICTED ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

PROJECTS; PROVIDING FOR REPEALER, SEVERABILITY AND 

DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

     AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE, 

OKLAHOMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  Section 74-237, Economic Development Fund, in the City of Muskogee Code of 

Ordinances is hereby amended as follows:  

Sec. 74-237. - Economic development fund.  

(a) There is hereby created an "economic development fund" for the city as fund is defined in 

section 2-551 of the Code. The fund shall consist of all monies, including interest thereon, 

deposited therein pursuant to section 74-236 and as may from time to time be appropriated by 

the city council. The monies accruing to the credit of the fund may be budgeted and expended 

only for the following purposes:  

(1) To provide revenue to provide incentives to be used to create new jobs and retain existing 

jobs for high-impact business projects as defined below;  

(2) To pay for debt service on obligations issued to assist in the establishment of 

manufacturing or distribution facilities;  

(3) To fund job creation incentives and capital improvements, including the acquisition of 

land and facilities;  

(4) To fund infrastructure improvements serving the proposed development area;  

(5) To fund marketing of the city to prospective companies or to implement such program 

through contractual services with other agencies; and  

(6) To provide for necessary city staff or consultants and supplies to implement this activity.  

(b) Within the economic development fund there shall be a general account. The account shall 

consist of all such monies, including interest thereon, deposited therein pursuant to this 

section. Monies accruing to the credit of the general account may be budgeted and expended 

for any purpose of the economic development fund.  

(1)   For Fiscal Year 2019 only, $100,000 shall be set aside within the general account to fund 

such unrestricted economic development projects, which the City Council, in its sole 

discretion, deem appropriate and for the public purpose.  



 

(c) Within the economic development fund there shall be an economic opportunity account. The 

account shall consist of all such monies, including interest thereon, deposited therein pursuant 

to this section. Monies accruing to the credit of the economic opportunity account may be 

budgeted and expended for only those purposes set out in subsection (1) below.  

(1) a. For the purpose of assisting in the development of a high-impact business project or 

facility or retaining such project or facility, a high-impact business project is defined 

as a retail or nonretail development activity that creates new, high-skill, high-wage 

jobs which foster the sound growth of the local economy. "New jobs" includes both 

the expansion of existing local firms, as well as relocation of firms from outside the 

area;  

b. For the purpose of assisting in the development or redevelopment activities located 

in areas targeted for development and redevelopment in the city's comprehensive 

plan, such as, but not limited to, blighted areas or urban renewal project areas; or  

c. For the purpose of assisting in projects that will make a unique or unequaled 

contribution to development or redevelopment efforts in the city, due to the project's 

magnitude, significance to the community or aesthetic quality.  

(2) A two-thirds majority vote (six votes) of all the members of the city council is required 

to authorize any expenditure of monies from the economic opportunity account.  

(3) The city council shall not consider approval of any payments from the economic 

opportunity account unless the city has received the following information, as 

appropriate, and presented the same to the city council:  

a. The number of jobs created by a new business establishment;  

b. The number of jobs retained by the existing business establishment;  

c. The average salary of jobs to be created by a new establishment;  

d. The average salary of jobs to be retained by an existing business;  

e. The total capital investment to be made by the business establishment;  

f. The likelihood of other business establishments locating within the same vicinity or 

within the Muskogee metropolitan area as a result of the business activity; and  

g. Such other factors as the city council may determine to be relevant including, but not 

limited to:  

1. Cost of the development assistance (including labor costs of city staff);  

2. Cost of city services such as police and fire;  

3. Wear and tear on city streets and roads serving the proposed development;  

4. Increased burden on water, sewer and storm systems;  

5. Estimated "transfer losses" from existing merchants.  



(d) For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2014, and each fiscal year thereafter, all revenue 

deposited within the economic development fund shall be distributed and apportioned 

monthly as follows:  

(1) Sixty percent shall be deposited into the general account; and  

(2) Forty percent shall be deposited into the economic opportunity account until such time as 

the amount of said account equals $5,000,000.00. All monies directed to the economic 

opportunity account by this subsection not necessary to maintain this balance shall be 

deposited into the general fund of the city.  

(3)  For a one-year period only, beginning July 1, 2018, the distribution referenced in 

subsections (1) and (2) shall be modified as follows: 

 (i)  Seventy-Five percent shall be deposited into the general account; and 

 (ii)  Twenty-Five percent shall be deposited into the economic opportunity account.  

(e) All monies accruing to the credit of the economic development fund that are not expended by 

the end of the then current fiscal year shall be redeposit within said fund for use in the next 

fiscal year.  

(f) Amounts set aside in the city budget as "economic development fund" may be expended for 

purposes other than those established in subsections (a), (b) and (c) of this section only when 

certain specific circumstances exist. The circumstances requiring the expenditure of economic 

development funds are not expected to recur on a routine basis. The circumstances when it is 

necessary to appropriate or spend economic development fund amounts are subject to the 

objective criteria outlining the parameters of acceptable uses of these funds are as follows and 

must be declared by a two-thirds majority vote of all of the members of the governing body 

establishing that one or more of the criteria listed below exists:  

(1) Expenditures for emergency situations as defined above for life, health, or public safety 

issues for which no existing appropriation exists;  

(2) Situations where an expense or unexpected revenue decline or arises that could not have 

reasonably been foreseen, and for which new revenue is not available to offset and 

transfers of existing appropriations are not considered feasible or appropriate in 

maintaining existing service levels;  

(3) Situations where the proposed use is of a nonoperational nature involving capital or 

equipment purchases having a useful life of greater than five years;  

(4) Situations where the proposed use is of a nonrecurring nature, such as a study, or for start-

up costs of a program whose ongoing costs are otherwise funded;  

(5) To temporarily satisfy a judgment from a court of competent jurisdiction that will be 

reimbursed from property tax levies;   

(6) To pay debt service on economic development projects;  

(7) To pay levies of ad valorem taxes on behalf of the City of Muskogee Urban Renewal 

Authority.  

Section 2. REPEALER. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in direct conflict herewith are 

repealed to the extent of the conflict only. 



 

Section 3. SEVERABILITY. Should any part section, subsection, sentence, provision, clause or 

phrase hereof be held invalid, void, or unconstitutional for any reason, such holding shall not 

render invalid, void, or unconstitutional any other section, subsection, sentence, provision, clause, 

or phrase of this ordinance, and the same are deemed severable for this purpose. 

 

Section 4. EMERGENCY. This ordinance being designated to protect the public health, safety and 

welfare of the inhabitants of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, and its passage being  immediately 

necessary, an emergency is hereby declared to exist and by reason whereof this ordinance shall 

take effect immediately upon its passage, approval and publication as provided by law. 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE, 

OKLAHOMA, THIS 29th DAY OF MAY, 2018. 

 

 

 

CITY OF MUSKOGEE 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

JOHN R. COBURN, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

TAMMY TRACY, CITY CLERK 

 

 

(seal) 

 

 

Approved as to form and legality this 29th day of May, 2018. 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

ROY TUCKER, CITY ATTORNEY 



   
Regular City Council 11.           
Meeting Date: 05/29/2018  
Submitted For: Greg Riley, Public Works  Initiator: Roy Tucker, City

Attorney
Department: Public Works
Staff Information Source: Abigail Wright 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of an Agreement For Household Waste Collection Services between the City of
Muskogee and Heritage Environmental Services, providing contractual services associated with the
collection, transportation, insuring reuse opportunities and disposal of residentially generated household
hazardous waste materials for events held in June 2, 2018 and October 20, 2018, or take other necessary
action.  (Greg Riley)

BACKGROUND:
This agreement is based on a previous cost proposal and agreement with Rineco Environmental Services
presented and approved by City Council on January 27, 2014. The agreement allowed for annual
renewal of the contact upon mutual agreement of both parties, which has continued until 2017.  In 2017,
Heritage Environmental Services purchased Rineco Environmental Services and as such, a new
agreement is needed. The cost of the services provided is the same as the original agreement and can be
seen in Exhibit A and B.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the Agreement.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Proposed Agreement 
Exhibits to contract 



AGREEMENT FOR HOUSEHOLD CHEMICAL WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES

Between the City of Muskogee and Heritage Environmental Services .

This Agreement made this __ day of May 2018, between the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, Hereinafter 
referred to as the “City” and Heritage Environmental Services of __(City)______, _(state)________,
hereinafter referred to as “Heritage” herby authorizes Heritage Environmental Services to perform 
services as follows:

The Parties, in consideration for mutual covenants contained herein, agree as follows:

1. Heritage agrees to provide the City with services associated with the collection, transportation, 
ensuring reuse opportunities and disposal of residentially generated household chemical waste 
(hereinafter referred to as “HHW”) materials. 

A. The collection event will be on June 2, 2018 and October 20, 2018 at a site to be specified by 
the City. The one-day event will be open to the public at 9:00 a.m. and end at 3:00 p.m. All 
residents of Muskogee will be eligible to deliver HHW materials to the site during the 
collection period. 

B. All HHW materials with the exception of automotive batteries collected during the events 
will be transported by Heritage to the Heritage processing facility located in _(City)_______,
(State) ___________for proper handling and processing. 

C. Heritage agrees to provide an on-site reuse center during the collection events. Heritage 
considers a material reusable if it meets the following conditions: (a) contained within the 
original container with legible product labeling and usage information, (b) not banned, illegal, 
or otherwise restricted from use, and (c) on fourth or more by volume. 

D. Heritage agrees to provide the City with an event SUMMARY REPORT detailing the; (a) 
types of HHW material collected, (b) total weight of each material collected, and (c) total 
weight of materials directed to reuse or beneficial reuse. 

2. Heritage will be responsible for ensuring a reasonably safe and secure operating environment for   
the collection event and shall have responsibility for cleaning any waste that is spilled on-site and 
or on equipment used during the event. 

3. Heritage agrees to operate in accordance with the requirements of all federal, state, and local 
laws, regulations and ordinances having appropriate jurisdiction. Heritage will maintain the 
insurance coverage’s indicated in the Certificate of Insurance and provided to the City. 

4. INDEMNIFICATION

A. Heritage hereby agrees to indemnify and hold the City and its officers, directors, employees, 
agents, owners, affiliates and contractors harmless from and against any and all loss and 
damage, suits, liability and expenses (including, but not limited to, reasonable investigation, 
legal expenses and attorney’s fees) arising out of any clam for loss of or damage to property, 
including Heritage property, and injuries to or death of persons, including Heritage 
employees, caused by, resulting from, or growing out of the services described herein, only to 
the extent that such loss or damage is directly due to Heritage’s actions. 



B. To the extent provided by law, the city hereby agrees to indemnify and hold Heritage and its 
officers, directors, employees, agents, owners, affiliates and contractors harmless from and 
against any and all loss and damage, suits, liability and expenses (including, but not limited 
to, reasonable investigation, legal expenses and attorneys’ fees) arising out of any clam for 
loss of or damage to property, including the City’s property, and injuries to or death of 
persons, including City employees, caused by, resulting from, or growing out of the services 
described herein, only to the extent that such loss or damage is directly due to the City’s 
actions. 

5. The City agrees to compensate Heritage payable within 15 days of the date of invoice. Total 
invoice cost will be based upon a fixed set-up/mobilization fee plus the waste disposal cost as 
stated in attached Exhibit A entitled, “Cost Proposal – Part #1” and Exhibit B, entitled “Cost 
Proposal – Part #2: Material Disposal Costs,” with both exhibits incorporated herein. Waste 
categories and units of measurement used for invoice purposes shall be the same as those shown 
on said exhibits. 

6. This Agreement shall become effective upon the date of execution and shall expire at the end of a 
one (1) year period. Said contract may be renewed annually at the mutual agreement of both 
parties. Written notice of termination must be received by either party (30 ) days prior to contract 
termination.

7. Any notice required to be given by the terms of this agreement shall be delivered to the parties as 
follows: City of Muskogee Attn: Greg Riley, Director of Public Works, 301 S. Cherokee, 
Muskogee, Ok 74403 and for Heritage Attn: (Name,) (Title) (Address)

BY SIGNATURE BELOW, on the date first above written, the Parties herby agree to the terms and 
conditions described herein. 

Heritage City of Muskogee

________________________ __________________________
Name John R. Coburn, Mayor

________________________ __________________________
Date Date

ATTEST:
City Clerk

__________________________
Tammy Tracy



Approved as to form and legality on behalf of City this ____ day of May, 2018. 

___________________________
Roy D. Tucker, City Attorney







   
Regular City Council 12. a.           
Meeting Date: 05/29/2018  
Submitted For: Roy Tucker, City Attorney  Initiator: Ashley Wallace,

Office Adm 1
Department: City Clerk
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Pursuant to Section 307B.2, Title 25, Oklahoma Statutes, consider convening in executive session to
discuss negotiations with the Fraternal Order of Police, Lodge #95, and if necessary, take appropriate
action in open session.

BACKGROUND:
The City's negotiating team desires to discuss with the Mayor and Council the ongoing negotiations with
FOP, Lodge #95.

The City Council should determine that disclosure of ongoing negotiations between the City and FOP
will seriously impair the ability of the City to continue negotiations.  Therefore, the Council should
convene in Executive Session to discuss this matter.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Pursuant to Section 307B.2, Title 25, Oklahoma Statutes, consider convening in executive session to
discuss negotiations with the Fraternal Order of Police, Lodge #95, and if necessary, take appropriate
action in open session.
 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
No file(s) attached.


	Agenda
	___7367
	    05-14-2018 ccmin
	_ 1.  _C.01.__7347
	    Claims List
	_ 2.  _C.02._Civic Center Rental Rates
	    Resolution - Civic Center Rates
	    Comparison Room Rates
	    Appendix A - Revised
	_ 3.  _C.03._Surplus Property
	    Map 
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	    2725 RES 05-29-2016 Higgins Addition
	_ 4.  _C.04._Preliminary & Final Plat - Wallingford Addition
	    Wallingford Addition
	_ 5.  _C.05._Consider approval of Resolution _2723 
	    2724 RES 05-29-2018 Solid Waste
	_ 6.  _C.06._Consider approval of lowest bids for Road Materials
	    2017-2018
	    2018-2019
	_ 7.  _C.07._Consider approval of lowest bids for concrete for 2018_2019 Street repairs to Muskogee Ready Mix
	    2017-2018
	    2018-2019
	_ 8.  _C.08._Airport Grazing Leases 
	    
	_ 9.  _C.09._Airport Board Appointment
	    Monte Wapaha
	Regular_ 10.  _C.10._Economic Development Fund 
	    4047-A 5-29-2018 Economic Dev. Funds
	Regular_ 11.  _C.11._Household pollutant
	    Proposed Agreement
	    Exhibits to contract
	_ 12. a. _C.12.a._Negotiations with the Fraternal Order of Police

